
Committee Agenda  
 

 

1 

 
 
AREA PLANNING SUBCOMMITTEE SOUTH 
Wednesday, 15th October, 2008 
 
Place: Roding Valley High School, Brook Road, Loughton, Essex 
  
Room: Dining Hall 
  
Time: 7.30 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer: 

Gary Woodhall - Office of the Chief Executive 
Email: gwoodhall@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel: 01992 564470 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors J Hart (Chairman), Mrs L Wagland (Vice-Chairman), K Angold-Stephens, 
R Barrett, D Bateman, K Chana, Mrs S Clapp, Miss R Cohen, M Cohen, D Dodeja, 
Mrs A Haigh, J Knapman, R Law, J Markham, G Mohindra, Mrs C Pond, Mrs P Richardson, 
B Sandler, P Spencer, Mrs J Sutcliffe and H Ulkun 
 
 
 

A PLAN SHOWING THE LOCATION OF RODING VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL IS 
ATTACHED TO THIS AGENDA. A BRIEFING WILL BE HELD FOR THE CHAIRMAN, 
VICE-CHAIRMAN AND GROUP SPOKESPERSONS OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE, AT  

6.30 P.M. PRIOR TO THE MEETING 
 

WEBCASTING NOTICE 
 
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy and copies made available to those that request it. 
 
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber 
public gallery area 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic 
Services Officer on 01992 564249. 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Wednesday, 15 October 2008 
 

2 

 
 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   

 
  1. This meeting is to be webcast;  

 
2. Members are reminded of the need to activate their microphones before 
speaking; and  
 
3. the Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be filmed live for 
subsequent uploading to the Internet and will be capable of repeated viewing. 
 
If you are seated in the public seating area it is possible that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast although Officers will try and avoid this. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you have any concerns 
about this you should speak to the Webcasting Officer.” 
 

 2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING 
SUBCOMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 8) 

 
  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached together with a plan 

showing the location of the meeting. 
 

 3. MINUTES  (Pages 9 - 20) 
 

  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee. 
 

 4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on this agenda. 
 

 6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and 
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 21 - 74) 
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development)  To consider planning applications 
as set out in the attached schedule 
 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Wednesday, 15 October 2008 
 

3 

Background Papers:  (i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the 
schedule, letters of representation received regarding the applications which are 
summarised on the schedule.  (ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of 
officers inspecting the properties listed on the schedule in respect of which 
consideration is to be given to the enforcement of planning control. 
 

 8. DELEGATED DECISIONS   
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications 
determined by the Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated 
powers since the last meeting of a Plans Subcommittee may be inspected in the 
Members Room or at the Planning and Economic Development Information Desk at 
the Civic Offices, Epping. 
 

 9. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules 
contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Wednesday, 15 October 2008 
 

4 

 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 
 



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are 
the public excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front 
page of the agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the 
Subcommittee.  
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on 
the day before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of 
the agenda. Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must 
register with Democratic Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning 
Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), 
the local Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would 
normally withdraw from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the 
meeting on an item and then withdraw.  
 
Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the 
Sub-Committee before leaving. 
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind 
that you are limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers 
may clarify matters relating to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-
Committee members.  
 
If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will 
determine the application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my 
objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send 
further information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through 
Democratic Services or our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information 
sent to Councillors should be copied to the Planning Officer dealing with your 
application. 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they 
will listen to an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear 
any speakers’ presentations.  
 
The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) 
Applicant or his/her agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and 
vote on either the recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by 
the Subcommittee. Should the Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action 
different to officer recommendation, they are required to give their reasons for doing 
so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or 
Structure Plan Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next 
meeting of the District Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your 
Voice’ 
 

Page 6



Area Plans Subcommittee South – Location Plan

PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.software-partners.co.uk

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Committee: Area Planning Subcommittee 
South

Date: 24 September 2008  

   
Place: Roding Valley High School, Brook 

Road, Loughton, Essex 
Time: 7.30  - 8.20 pm 

Members
Present:

J Hart (Chairman), M Cohen (Vice-Chairman), K Angold-Stephens, R Barrett, 
Miss R Cohen, D Dodeja, Mrs A Haigh, R Law, Mrs C Pond, P Spencer, 
Mrs J Sutcliffe and H Ulkun 

Other
Councillors:

Apologies: Mrs L Wagland, D Bateman, K Chana, Mrs S Clapp, J Knapman, J Markham, 
G Mohindra, Mrs P Richardson and B Sandler 

Officers
Present:

N Richardson (Principal Planning Officer), G J Woodhall (Democratic 
Services Officer), R Harris (Democratic Services Assistant), S G Hill (Senior 
Democratic Services Officer) and A Hendry (Democratic Services Officer) 

48. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  

The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. 

49. MINUTES  

 RESOLVED: 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 3 September 2008 be taken as read 
and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

50. APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRMAN  

The Chairman invited nominations from the Sub-Committee for the appointment of a 
Vice-Chairman for the duration of the meeting. 

RESOLVED: 

That Councillor M Cohen be appointed as Vice-Chairman for the duration of 
the meeting. 

51. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors R Barrett, K 
Angold-Stephens, R Law and Mrs C Pond declared a personal interest in the 
following items of the agenda by virtue of being members of Loughton Town Council. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 9



Area Planning Subcommittee South  24 September 2008 

2

The Councillors had determined that their interest was not prejudicial and would 
remain in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 

• EPF/0967/08 – 236 High Road, Loughton, 

• EPF/1484/08 – 44 Forest Road, Loughton, 

• EPF/1578/08 – 20 Albion Park, Loughton; and 

• EPF/1627/08 – Greengates, 24/26 Albion Hill, Loughton. 

(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors Mrs J 
Sutcliffe, D Dodeja and P Spencer declared a personal interest in the following items 
of the agenda by virtue of being members of Buckhurst Hill Parish Council. The 
Councillors had determined that their interest was not prejudicial and would remain in 
the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 

• EPF/1642/08 – 23 Hurst Road, Buckhurst Hill. 

(c) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors Mrs C Pond 
and R Barrett declared a personal interest in the following items of the agenda by 
virtue of a slight acquaintance with the applicant. The Councillors had determined 
that their interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the 
consideration of the application and voting thereon: 

• EPF/1484/08 – 44 Forest Road, Loughton. 

(d) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor M Cohen 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of the 
objector being related to a Director within his Corporate Support & ICT Services 
Portfolio. The Councillor had determined that his interest was not prejudicial and 
would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting 
thereon:

• EPF/1153/08 – Greengates, 24/26 Albion Hill, Loughton. 

52. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee.

53. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  

The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission. 

RESOLVED: 

 That the planning applications numbered 1 – 5 be determined as set out in 
the attached schedule to these minutes. 

54. DELEGATED DECISIONS  

The Sub-Committee noted that schedules of planning applications determined by the 
Director of Planning and Economic Development under delegated authority since the 
last meeting had been circulated and could be inspected at the Civic Offices. 

Page 10



Area Planning Subcommittee South  24 September 2008 

3

CHAIRMAN

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Report Item No: 1

APPLICATION No: EPF/1642/08

SITE ADDRESS: 23 Hurst Road 
Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 6AB 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill East 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Part double and single storey front, side & rear extensions. 
(Revised application) 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 

The Committee’s attention was drawn to a representation received from 15 Hurst Road, Buckhurst 
Hill

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match 
those of the existing building. 

3 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting the Order) no windows other than any shown on 
the approved plan shall be formed at any time in the flank walls of the development 
hereby permitted without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

4 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order) no enclosure or balcony shall be 
formed at any time on any part of the roof of the development hereby approved 
without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

5 Prior to first occupation of the building hereby approved the proposed window 
openings in the first floor flank shall be fitted with obscured glass and have fixed 
frames, and shall be permanently retained in that condition. 

Minute Item 53

Page 5Page 13



Page 6Page 14



Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No: EPF/0967/08

SITE ADDRESS: 236 High Road 
Loughton
Essex 
IG10 1RB 

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton St Marys 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Retention of 2 no. satellite receiver dishes. 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 

CONDITIONS

1 Within 2 calendar months of the date of this decision, the 900mm dish, the siting of 
which is hereby approved, shall be painted with the British Standard BS4800 colour 
known as 08 C 37 Caramel, and retained in this colour only unless otherwise agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 7Page 15



Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/1484/08

SITE ADDRESS: 44 Forest Road 
Loughton
Essex 
IG10 1DX 

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Forest 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use from A1 to A2. 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 The A2 use hereby permitted shall not be open to customers/members outside the 
hours of 0730 to 2000. 

Page 8Page 16



Report Item No: 4

APPLICATION No: EPF/1578/08

SITE ADDRESS: 20 Albion Park 
Loughton
Essex 
IG10 4RB 

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Forest 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Two storey and single storey rear extension to replace 
existing conservatories and a new porch. (Revised 
Application) 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match 
those of the existing building. 

3 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting the Order) no windows other than any shown on 
the approved plan shall be formed at any time in the flank walls of the development 
hereby permitted without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 9Page 17



Report Item No: 5

APPLICATION No: EPF/1627/08

SITE ADDRESS: Greengates
24/26 Albion Hill 
Loughton
Essex 
IG10 4RD 

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Forest 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Proposed new garage to no. 24 and new house to 26 Albion 
Hill. (Revised Application) 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 

3 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting the Order) no windows other than any shown on 
the approved plan shall be formed at any time in the flank walls of the development 
hereby permitted without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

4 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order) no enclosure or balcony shall be 
formed at any time on the development hereby approved without the prior written 
approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

5 Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during 
construction works shall be installed in accordance with details which shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these 
facilities installed prior to the commencement of any building works on site, and shall 
be used to clean vehicles leaving the site. 

6 No tree, shrub, or hedge which are shown as being retained on the approved plans 
shall be cut down, uprooted, wilfully damaged or destroyed, cut back in any way or 
removed other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without 
the written approval of the Local Planning Authority.  An arboricultural implications 
assessment and a Tree Constraints Plan shall be submitted to and agreed in writing 

Page 10Page 18



by the Local Planning Authority, prior to works commencing on site, in accordance 
with BS5837:2005. All tree works approved shall be carried out in accordance with 
British Standard Recommendations for Tree Work (B.S.3998: 1989).   

If any tree shown to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and 
particulars is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes severely 
damaged or diseased within 3 years of the completion of the development, another 
tree, shrub, or hedge shall be planted at the same place, and that tree, shrub, or 
hedge shall be of such size, specification, and species, and should be planted at 
such time as may be specified in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   

If within a period of five years from the date of planting any replacement tree is 
removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective 
another tree of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted 
at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to 
any variation.

7 Prior to the commencement of the development details of the proposed surface 
materials for the driveway shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The agreed surface treatment shall be completed prior to the 
first occupation of the development. 

8 A flood risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to commencement of the development.  The assessment shall 
demonstrate that adjacent properties shall not be subject to increased flood risk and, 
dependant upon the capacity of the receiving drainage shall include calculations of 
any increased storm run-off and the necessary on-site detention.  The approved 
measures shall be carried out prior to the first occupation of the building hereby 
approved and shall be adequately maintained in accordance with a management 
plan to be submitted concurrently with the assessment. 

9 All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be 
removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

10 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a tree 
protection plan, to include all the relevant details of tree protection has been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. 

The statement must include a plan showing the area to be protected and fencing in 
accordance with the relevant British Standard (Trees in Relation to Construction-
Recommendations; BS.5837:2005).  It must also specify any other means needed to 
ensure that all of the trees to be retained will not be harmed during the development, 
including by damage to their root system, directly or indirectly. 

The statement must explain how the protection will be implemented, including 
responsibility for site supervision, control and liaison with the LPA. 

The trees must be protected in accordance with the agreed statement throughout 
the period of development, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior 
written consent to any variation. 

Page 11Page 19



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE SOUTH 

15 OCTOBER 2008 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES 

 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE

1. EPF/0099/08 90 Church Hill, Loughton GRANT 23 
2. EPF/1347/08 90 Church Hill, Loughton GRANT 28 
3. EPF/1480/08 Farmhouse, Gravel Lane, 

Chigwell 
GRANT 31 

4. EPF/1647/08 The Stables, 60A Hainault Road, 
Chigwell 

GRANT 37 

5. EPF/1231/08 20 Connaught Avenue, Loughton GRANT 41 
6. EPF/1411/08 2C Goldings Road, Loughton GRANT 47 
7. EPF/1703/08 Woodberrie House, Woodbury 

Hill, Loughton 
GRANT 52 

8. EPF/1779/08 9-11 High Beech Road, Loughton GRANT 56 
9. EPF/1615/08 160 Loughton Way, Buckhurst 

Hill 
GRANT 65 

10. EPF/1753/08 102-104 Queen’s Road, 
Buckhurst Hill 

GRANT 69 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0099/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 90 Church Hill 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton St Johns 
 

APPLICANT: Miss Kay Dodds- Marishal Thompson & Co 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO 32/98 Oak: Fell. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 A replacement tree or trees, of a number, species, size and in a position as agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted within one month of the 
implementation of the felling hereby agreed, unless varied with the written 
agreement of the Local Planning Authority.  If within a period of five years from the 
date of planting any replacement tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed, dies or 
becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

2 The felling authorised by this consent shall be carried out only after the Local 
Planning Authority has received, in writing, 5 working days prior notice of such 
works. 
 

 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since it is Council policy to present all applications to fell 
trees before the elected members. 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
T1.Oak. Fell and replace 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The oak tree is located on the north eastern boundary of the property, bounded by a raised terrace 
area and retaining wall construction designed to address the effect of the steeply sloping land on 
which the house stands. At approximately 15 metres in height, with a crown spread in excess of 8 
metres, this generally well formed tree is partially visible from Church Hill, but its position behind 
the garage attached to the flank wall obstructs clear views of it  from the main road running up 
Church Hill.  

Page 23



 
The house is Victorian in period and of traditional brick construction, with later single storey rear 
and side additions. It is attached to its southerly neighbour.  Together they present a handsome 
building, set back some 10 metres from the road. 
 
Church Hill is a busy route through Loughton and exclusively residential in use in this locality. The 
oak contributes to the leafy character of this part of Church Hill.  The property benefits from a 
number of other native broadleaf trees growing in the front garden of 2A Pump Hill.  
 
Relevant History: 
 
A tree application was submitted to the council on 8th November 2007, which proposed felling the 
oak tree marked T1 on the plan of TPO/32/98. This application was found to be unsuitable for 
determination due to a lack of necessary information, as required by the Epping Forest District 
Council approved Checklist for Subsidence Related TPO Applications. 
 
The current application was submitted in January 2008 and the additional information provided 
was assessed by an appointed structural engineer. The engineer suggested that the application be 
returned to the applicant on the basis of lack of evidence on several critical points. A letter was 
sent to the applicant on 18th March 2008, suggesting that a meeting between the council appointed 
engineer and expert representatives for the applicant might be arranged in order that the case 
progress may be accelerated to a resolution. 
 
Following further correspondence from the council to the applicant’s agent, a site meeting was 
arranged for the 2nd September, which resulted in further site investigations at the seat of the 
damage within the house and the commissioning of a distortion survey of the house. This latest 
trial pit investigation was attended by the council appointed engineer, who was able to examine 
both the pit and the condition and contents of the extracted sample. From these observations a 
brief report was submitted giving recommendations in respect of the best course of action, which 
are summarised below. 
 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations:  
LL9 Felling of preserved trees 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues that arise with this application are considered to be the following: 
 

• Evidence of tree related damage to house 
• Value of the tree 
• Other considerations 

 
Evidence to support application to remove tree 
 
When this application was first submitted, the supporting evidence was found to be poor and 
lacked many essential pieces of information required for a full assessment of the case. Several 
requests for the necessary information were made, which caused a considerable delay in 
progressing the case. 
 
The latest investigations and distortion survey show clear engineering evidence of dry clay and 
roots described, as follows;  

Page 24



 
‘The distortion survey indicates that there has been significant subsidence event centred on the 
lounge/kitchen partition wall affecting a substantial area of the centre of the house. ‘ 
 
‘…the foundation to the internal wall was founded on virgin ground being friable, dry clay with large 
quantities of gypsum crystals..’  
 
‘Roots were encountered in the upper clay formation and a good number of these were fresh in 
appearance and contained moisture.’  
 
‘On the basis of my examination of the trial pit and soils arising and on my interpretation of the 
Distortion Survey…, I conclude that there has been a significant degree of subsidence caused by 
the subject tree(s) and I recommend the felling as requested by the applicant.’ 
 
Value of the tree 
 

• Visual amenity of the tree 
 
The tree has some visual amenity. This is limited by its position; set back 12 metres from the front 
elevation, along the side boundary of this substantial house and behind the single storey garage. 
The top of the crown can be seen above the house roofline and most of the tree is visible when 
viewed directly from the drive to the front of the house. The tree is also partially screened by trees 
in front of it, which grow close to the boundary of the neighbouring garden. 
 

• Life expectancy of the tree and growth potential 
 
The tree is healthy and well formed, with a long life expectancy and significant potential for future 
growth, possibly to double its current size in terms of overall volume. 
 

• Suitability of tree in current position 
 
In the light of the above evaluations of the tree in terms of its immediate visual significance and its 
future development, it must be concluded that the tree is not suitable in its current position in that it 
will become increasingly disruptive due to its size but only marginally more visually important in the 
street scene landscape due to the obstruction of both the house at 90 Church Hill and the recently 
enlarged dwelling at 2A Pump Hill. 
 
Other considerations 
 
The alternative to felling the tree might be to heavily prune the tree. This option would diminish the 
tree’s stature and appearance to such a degree and does not guarantee a lasting remedy to the 
subsidence problem. Therefore, in this case, it has been discounted as a realistic course of action. 

 
Conclusion: 
 
Although the tree has some public value it is considered that, in this case, there is justification in 
allowing its removal due to the evidence based link between its water demanding roots and the 
extensive structural damage occurring to the internal walls of the house. Replacing it with a 
healthy young tree, at a more suitable and publicly visible location will provide long term amenity 
value to the area  
 
It is recommended to grant permission to this application on the grounds that the evidence, which 
shows the tree’s involvement in the subsidence related damage to the house, justifies the need to 
remove it. The proposal therefore accords with Local Plan Landscape Policy LL9. 

Page 25



 
A condition requiring the replacement of this tree and a condition requiring prior notice of the works 
to remove it must be attached to the decision notice in the event of members agreeing to allow the 
felling. 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
TOWN COUNCIL: Objects to this application. The Committee preferred for remedial work to be 
carried out to the property rather than see the removal of the oak tree.   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



 
 
123 

 
 

 
 
  

 

 
 

61.9m

50.9m

63.7m

72.2m

W
ar

d B
dy CR 52

48

53

31

67

69

73

67a

65

63a

65a

25 to 30

63

32

47

47a

13 to 18

2

19 to 24

8

9

53

5

Almond

1

86

El

House

Sub Sta

82

1

12

34

35

7

2

119

78

115

109

99

103

107
101

105

111

72

9

58

64

66

89

85

70

49

2a

Brancaster
Place

LB

HIL
L

PU
M

P HILL

QUEE
NS 

ROAD

THE H
EIG

HTS
EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

1 & 2 

Application Number: EPF/0099/08 & EPF/1347/08 

Site Name: 90 Church Hill, Loughton, IG10 1LB 

Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 27



 Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1347/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 90 Church Hill 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 1LB 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton St Johns 
 

APPLICANT: Miss Kay Dodds 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/32/98 T2 Ash - Fell and Replace 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 A replacement tree or trees, of a number, species, size and in a position as agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted within one month of the 
implementation of the felling hereby agreed, unless varied with the written 
agreement of the Local Planning Authority.  If within a period of five years from the 
date of planting any replacement tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed, dies or 
becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

2 The felling authorised by this consent shall be carried out only after the Local 
Planning Authority has received, in writing, 5 working days prior notice of such 
works. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since it is Council policy to present all applications to fell 
trees before the elected members. 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
T2. Ash. Fell and replace 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The ash tree is located on the north eastern boundary of the property. At approximately 11 metres 
in height, with a crown spread in excess of 6 metres, this generally poorly structured tree is clearly 
visible from Church Hill.  
 

Page 28



The house is Victorian in period and of traditional brick construction, with later single storey rear 
and side additions. It is attached to its southerly neighbour.  Together they present a handsome 
building, set back some 10 metres from the road. 
 
Church Hill is a busy route through Loughton and exclusively residential in use in this locality. The 
ash contributes to the leafy character of this part of Church Hill. The property benefits from a 
number of other native broadleaf trees growing in the front garden of 2A Pump Hill.  
 
Relevant History: 
 
A tree application was submitted to the council on 1st July 2008, which proposed felling the ash 
tree marked T2 on the plan of TPO/32/98. This application was found to be unsuitable for 
determination due to a lack of necessary information, as required by the Epping Forest District 
Council approved Checklist for Subsidence Related TPO Applications. 
 
Following further correspondence from the council to the applicant’s agent in respect of another 
live application, a site meeting was arranged for the 2nd September, which resulted in further site 
investigations at the seat of the damage within the house and the commissioning of a distortion 
survey of the house. This latest trial pit investigation was attended by the council appointed 
engineer, who was able to examine both the pit and the condition and contents of the extracted 
sample. From these observations a brief report was submitted giving recommendations in respect 
of the best course of action, which are summarised below. 
 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations:  
 
LL9 Felling of preserved trees 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues that arise with this application are considered to be the following: 
 

• Evidence of tree related damage to house 
• Value of the tree 
• Other considerations 

 
 
Evidence to support application to remove tree 
 
The latest investigations and distortion survey show clear engineering evidence of dry clay and 
roots described, as follows;  
 
‘….The distortion survey indicates that there has been significant subsidence event centred on the 
lounge/kitchen partition wall affecting a substantial area of the centre of the house. ‘ 
 
‘.…The foundation to the internal wall was founded on virgin ground being friable, dry clay with 
large quantities of gypsum crystals..’  
 
‘    Roots were encountered in the upper clay formation and a good number of these were fresh in 
appearance and contained moisture.’  
 

Page 29



‘….On the basis of my examination of the trial pit and soils arising and on my interpretation of the 
Distortion Survey…, I conclude that there has been a significant degree of subsidence caused by 
the subject tree(s) and I recommend the felling as requested by the applicant.’ 
 
Value of the tree 
 

• Visual amenity of the tree 
 
The tree has visual amenity but this is limited by its splayed and multi-stemmed structure. Its 
position along the side boundary of this substantial house, at the corner of the front drive area, 
provides clear views of it from Church Hill. The tree is part of a screen of trees, which grow close 
to the boundary of the neighbouring garden and up to the road frontage. It contributes to the leafy 
character of this part of Church Hill. 
 

• Life expectancy of the tree and growth potential 
 
The tree is healthy, with a long life expectancy and significant potential for future growth, possibly 
to double its current size in terms of overall volume. 
 

• Suitability of tree in current position 
 
The tree, in terms of its bank side location and at very close proximity to the fence, is not very 
suitable in its current position. It will become increasingly disruptive due to its size and extended 
stems, which will compete for light and increase the splayed form of the tree. 
 
Other considerations 
 
The alternative to felling the tree might be to heavily prune the tree. This option would diminish the 
tree’s stature and appearance to such a degree and does not guarantee a lasting remedy to the 
subsidence problem. Therefore, in this case, it has been discounted as a realistic course of action. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
Although the tree has some public value it is considered that, in this case, there is justification in 
allowing its removal due to the evidence based link between its water demanding roots and the 
extensive structural damage occurring to the internal walls of the house. Replacing it with a 
healthy young tree, at a more suitable and publicly visible location will provide long term amenity 
value to the area. 
 
It is recommended to grant permission to this application on the grounds that the evidence, which 
shows the tree’s involvement in the subsidence related damage to the house, justifies the need to 
remove it. The proposal therefore accords with Local Plan Landscape Policy LL9. 

 
A condition requiring the replacement of this tree and a condition requiring prior notice of the works 
to remove it must be attached to the decision notice in the event of members agreeing to allow the 
felling. 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
TOWN COUNCIL: Objects to this application. If, however , the District Council’s arboriculturist 
deems this application acceptable… then the Committee was willing to waive its objection. 
 
 

Page 30



 Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1480/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Farmhouse 

Gravel Lane 
Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 6DQ 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Village 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Richard Silver  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing house and erection of replacement two 
storey four bedroom residential dwelling. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 
 

3 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting the Order) no windows other than any shown on 
the approved plan shall be formed at any time in the first floor flank walls of the 
development hereby permitted without the prior written approval of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

4 Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during 
construction works shall be installed in accordance with details which shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these 
facilities installed prior to the commencement of any building works on site, and shall 
be used to clean vehicles leaving the site. 
 

5 Prior to the commencement of development details of screen walls, fences or such 
similar structures shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and 
shall be erected before the occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved and 
maintained in the agreed positions. 
 

6 Prior to first occupation of the building hereby approved the proposed window 
openings in the first floor flank walls shall be fitted with obscured glass and have 
fixed frames to a height of 1.7m above the internal floor level, and shall be 
permanently retained in that condition. 

Page 31



7 No tree, shrub, or hedge which are shown as being retained on the approved plans 
shall be cut down, uprooted, wilfully damaged or destroyed, cut back in any way or 
removed other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without 
the written approval of the Local Planning Authority.  All tree works approved shall 
be carried out in accordance with British Standard Recommendations for Tree Work 
(B.S.3998: 1989).   
 
If any tree shown to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and 
particulars is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes severely 
damaged or diseased within 3 years of the completion of the development, another 
tree, shrub, or hedge shall be planted at the same place, and that tree, shrub, or 
hedge shall be of such size, specification, and species, and should be planted at 
such time as may be specified in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   
 
If within a period of five years from the date of planting any replacement tree is 
removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective 
another tree of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted 
at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to 
any variation.  
 

8 Prior to the commencement of the development details of the proposed surface 
materials for the driveway shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The agreed surface treatment shall be completed prior to the 
first occupation of the development. 
 

9 Prior to commencement of development, including demolition or site clearance 
works, a phased contaminated land investigation shall be undertaken to assess the 
presence of contaminants at the site in accordance with an agreed protocol as 
below.  Should any contaminants be found in unacceptable concentrations, 
appropriate remediation works shall be carried out and a scheme for any necessary 
maintenance works adopted. 
 
Prior to carrying out a phase 1 preliminary investigation, a protocol for the 
investigation shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and the 
completed phase 1 investigation shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority 
upon completion for approval. 
 
Should a phase 2 main site investigation and risk assessment be necessary, a 
protocol for this investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencing the study and the completed phase 2 
investigation with remediation proposals shall be submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority prior to any remediation works being carried out. 
 
Following remediation, a completion report and any necessary maintenance 
programme shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval prior to 
first occupation of the completed development. 
 

10 All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be 
removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 

Page 32



 
11 Prior to commencement of development, details of levels shall be submitted to and 

approved by the Local Planning Authority showing the levels of the site prior to 
development and the proposed levels of all ground floor slabs of buildings, roadways 
and accessways and landscaped areas.   The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with those approved details. 
 

12 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting the Order) no development generally permitted 
by virtue of Part 1, Classes A and B shall be undertaken without the prior written 
permission of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since it is an application for a non householder 
development and the recommendation differs from more than one expression of objection 
(Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (f) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of proposal: 
 
Demolition of existing detached two storey house and erection of a replacement dwelling.  
 
Description of Site: 
 
Existing two storey house in the Green Belt. The house is set back to the west of Gravel Lane by 
about 30m. The land falls away gently to the north (Roseland Cottage). The site is currently well 
screened from Gravel Lane by a mature tree line. The site forms part of a small settlement at this 
location.  
 
Relevant History: 
 
Various extensions in the 1970s 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
GB2A Green belt 
GB15A Replacement Dwellings 
DBE 1 Design of new buildings 
DBE 4 Design in the Green Belt 
LL1 Landscaping 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues in this application are: 
 

1. Whether a replacement house is acceptable in principle and if this particular proposal 
complies with Council policy on replacement houses within the Green Belt.  

2. Design 
3. Impact on Neighbours 
4. Landscaping 
5. Other Matters 

Page 33



 
Green Belt 
- This proposal would see the existing house demolished and the erection of a two storey 

dwelling and detached double garage, set behind the site of the present building by around 
18m. 

- The current house has a staggered L shaped plan, and is 9.2m with a hipped roof and an 
integral single storey double garage. 

- The existing building has no particular merit in architectural terms.  
- The replacement house will have a rectangular plan with front and rear projections and will be 

10.2m high (excluding the small roof light feature) with a hipped roof.  
- The scheme will have a rear single storey ‘Orangery’ projection and a detached double garage 

some 5.5m high with a hipped roof will be erected on the north east flank.  
- There is a basement area which would not be visible at ground level.  

- Council Policy allows the replacement of existing dwellings in the Green Belt if the building 
is not materially greater in volume than the existing building and it has no further impact on 
openness of the Green Belt than the original dwelling.  

- The current dwelling has a floor area of 460m². This proposal would see a dwelling with a 
floor area of 413m². 

- There will be an increase in volume of 16% over the existing house but a reduction of 10% 
in the floor area.  

- The gaps to each boundary will change from 1.8m to 6.8m at Roseland Cottage and 1.4m 
to 3m to the buildings to the south. 

- Therefore the issue is whether this property is in line with Council Policy.  
- It is the case that the scheme is higher and has a larger volume than the existing house, 

but its floor area is reduced and the building is set further back resulting in a better 
relationship with its neighbours. 

- The agent argues that the increase in volume is largely due to the existing building having 
a series of unsightly flat roofs on the rear elevation.  

- There is no doubt that this will be a more attractive building and it is considered that on 
balance the reduction in the footprint and the better siting, together with the height increase 
only being minor, with hipped roofs which further reduce the impact of the scheme, result in 
a scheme which has no adverse impact on the character, appearance and openness of the 
Green Belt in this location.  

- The garage is sizeable, but is not excessive and adopts a scale and significance in line 
with the main building. The building will be over 5m from the house and will be well 
screened by the boundary treatment.  

- Therefore this scheme is acceptable in Green Belt terms.  
 

Design 
- This is a significant dwelling in terms of size, and it is of reasonable appearance, with two flank 

chimneys and a roof light feature which is modest.  
- It is considered that the design of the property is acceptable and well designed. 
- Materials can be conditioned to be appropriate to this area.  
 
Impact on Neighbours 
- The nearest neighbours are Roseland Cottage to the northwest and The Coach House to the 

south. Both are close to the existing property and this scheme will see the gaps to these 
boundaries increased. 

-  There will no adverse overlooking of either neighbour. 
- There will be no signifigant loss of light to either neighbour. 
- In terms of the visual impact on either neighbour, the impact on the Coach House will be 

minimal as the property has a similar mass on this flank, which is set back which will create a 
more open area.  

- With regard to Roseland Cottage the new house will be moved back in line with the existing 
residential annex at this property. Although Rose Cottage is about 0.5m lower, the boundary is 

Page 34



screened by conifers and the gap to the building has been widened by the repositioning of the 
house.  

- Therefore due to the positioning of the new building, the existing screening on the neighbours 
land and the design of the new house there will be no adverse impact on the amenities of 
Rose Cottage. 

- The occupant of Turnours Hall have objected to the height and loss of light, but there will be no 
loss of light to their property which is 38m to the north of the site, and there will be very limited 
visual impact to this property which will cause no harm 

 
Landscaping 
- There are a number of mature trees and hedgerows on the site. These can be safeguarded by 

way of a landscaping condition. 
 
Conclusion 
 
This scheme causes no harm to the overall openness and character of the Green Belt. It is of an 
acceptable design which integrates well into the site. The recommendation is therefore for 
approval.  
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS 
 
TOWN COUNCIL – No Objection 
 
ROSELAND COTTAGE – Object, increase of height of building by 1m combined with the 
proposed chimneystack will have an unacceptable visual impact on us.  
 
TURNOURS HALL – Object, The increase above the existing building is around 3m and will throw 
an exaggerated shadow in the morning. Moving the building to the east will exacerbate this, and 
so will cause both sunlight and visual overbearance issues.  
 
 
 

Page 35



 
 
123 

 
 

 
 
  

 

 
 

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

3 

Application Number: EPF/1480/08 

Site Name: Farmhouse, Gravel Lane, Chigwell 
IG7 6DQ 

Scale of Plot: 1/5000

Page 36



 Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1647/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: The Stables  

60A Hainault Road 
Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 6QX 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Village 
 

APPLICANT: Miss Lucy-Jane Cooper 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Single storey side extension and one window to kitchen. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match 
those of the existing building. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
The proposal is for the addition of a second bedroom (4m x 2m) on the northern side of the 
property with a window facing westwards. The roof would be pitched to match the existing 
structure. The proposed materials shall also match the existing building. The proposal also 
includes the addition of a kitchen window to the eastern side of the property.  
 
Description of Site: 
 
The proposal site is a detached property which is located down a track off Hainault Road. The 
property is bordered by the track on its southern side and this borders onto the rail track serving 
Chigwell Station. The front of the property faces westward and is bordered by the gardens of a row 
of houses. The eastern boundary is an existing field and the northern boundary is where the 
property’s garden meets the garden of 40b. This boundary has a number of mature trees.  
 

Page 37



Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1305/85 - Outline application for four bedroom house. Refuse Permission – 06/01/86 
EPF/0638/88 - Outline application for 4 Bed- room house(revised proposal). Dismissed – 15/03/89 
EPF/1111/02 - Erection of stable block. Grant Permission (with conditions) – 30/10/02 
EPF/0027/05 - Change of use of stable to single storey detached dwelling. Grant Permission (with 
conditions) – 30/03/05 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Policy DBE3 – Design in Urban Areas 
Policy DBE9 – Loss of Amenity 
Policy DBE10 – Design of Residential Extension  
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues to consider are any potential loss of amenity, and the design of the extension in 
relation to the existing building and its setting.  
 
Impact on Appearance of Area 
 
Policy DBE3 states that new development will ensure individual identity and character is promoted. 
This is supported by policy DBE10 which states that a residential extension should “complement, 
and where appropriate enhance” the streetscene and existing building. 
 
This application proposes the use of a hipped roof and materials to match the existing structure. 
The windows are also in keeping with what currently exists. It is therefore felt that the proposal 
would not be out of keeping with the existing structure and would have minimal impact on the 
appearance of the area.  
 
Impact on Neighbours 
 
Policy DBE9 requires that residential extensions do not lead to loss of neighbour amenity. The 
property has no immediate neighbours on its eastern boundary and is bordered by an access track 
and then the rail line on the southern side. In relation to the northern boundary the proposal site is 
bordered by a large detached property. Due to the positioning of garden areas the southern 
elevation of the neighbouring property and the proposed extension would be approx 31m apart. 
There is also some tree and hedgerow cover. As there are also no proposed windows on the 
elevation facing this property there is not felt to be any significant loss of amenity. The property is 
bordered to the western side by a number of gardens/rear elevations of properties facing on to 
Hainault Road. It is proposed that a window on the extension would face these properties. This 
window would be positioned 33m approx from the nearest rear elevation. The boundaries are also 
separated by a solid wooden fence. As the proposed window is on the ground floor it is not felt that 
it would lead to any significant loss of amenity to neighbouring properties than the existing front 
windows.  
 
Conclusion: 
 
As there is minimal loss to neighbouring amenity or impact on the appearance of the area it is 
recommended that this proposal should be APPROVED (with conditions); 
 
 

Page 38



SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
CHIGWELL TOWN COUNCIL: Objection. Cause loss of amenity to No54 and original application 
recognised the need for strict control on this site.  
 
40B HAINAULT ROAD: Objection. The proposed extension will bring the building closer to 40B’s 
fence.  
 
                 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 39



 
 
123 

 
 

 
 
  

 

 
 

52.7m

48.5m

MP 7.25

36.3m

43.0m

40.2m

MP 7.5

56.4m

FW

Ward Bdy

Und

FF

FW

CR

FF

U
nd

91

52

93

10
6

9

1

5

11
4

El Sub Sta

6

122

95

48

40a32

19

40b

30

60

40

6 60a

Court

Council Offices
Parish

Victory

Hall

Library

Dolphin

1

110

Club

11

Chigwell Station

(London Transport)

102

23Bank

11

0b

0

Br
oo

k
Pa

ra
de

17

Parkview

1

49

72a

74

Savill's Cottages

72

72b
72c

4

Eastdene

64

70

1

C
ottage

Cottage
Holly

Lim
e Tree

35

31 33

Nursery

Track

SL

Chigwell Station

Track

Playground

TC
B

H
AIN

A
U

LT R
O

A
D

The Chase

THE CHASE

STATION ROAD

H
A

IN
A

U
LT R

O
A

D

H
IG

H

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

4 

Application Number: %EPF/1647/08 

Site Name: The Stables, 60A Hainault Road 
Chigwell, IG7 6QX 

Scale of Plot: 1/2500

Page 40



Report Item No: 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1231/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 20 Connaught Avenue 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 4DS 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Forest 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Sajjad Sain  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing and erection of new five bedroom house 
with accommodation at basement level. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 
 

3 Prior to first occupation of the building hereby approved the proposed window 
openings in first floor side elevations shall be fitted with obscured glass and have 
fixed frames up to a height of 1.7 metres above the finished floor level, and shall be 
permanently retained in that condition. 
 

4 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting the Order) no windows other than any shown on 
the approved plan shall be formed at any time in the flank elevations of the 
development hereby permitted without the prior written approval of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

5 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (Amendment) (No.2) (England) Order 2008 (or any other 
order revoking, further amending or re-enacting that order) no development 
generally permitted by virtue of Part 1, Classes A and B shall be undertaken without 
the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

6 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations which are audible at the 
boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of 
07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no 
time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by 

Page 41



the Local Planning Authority. 
  

7 All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be 
removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 

8 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a scheme of 
landscaping and a statement of the methods of its implementation have been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. The approved 
scheme shall be implemented within the first planting season following the 
completion of the development hereby approved.  
 
The scheme must include details of the proposed planting including a plan, details of 
species, stock sizes and numbers/densities where appropriate, and include a 
timetable for its implementation.  If any plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to 
thrive within a period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or 
destroyed, it must be replaced by another plant of the same kind and size and at the 
same place, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand, 
and in writing. 
 
The statement must include details of all the means by which successful 
establishment of the scheme will be ensured, including preparation of the planting 
area, planting methods, watering, weeding, mulching, use of stakes and ties, plant 
protection and aftercare.  It must also include details of the supervision of the 
planting and liaison with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
The landscaping must be carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme and 
statement, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written consent to 
any variation. 
 

9 Prior to the first occupation of the dwelling hereby approved, a screen shall be 
erected to the side of the rear balcony, as shown on the approved plans.  A screen 
of the same height shall be retained in this position thereafter. 
 

10 Prior to commencement of development, details of levels shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing the levels of the site prior to 
development and the proposed levels of all ground floor slabs of buildings, roadways 
and accessways and landscaped areas.   The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with those approved details. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since it is an application for commercial development and 
the recommendation differs from more than one expression of objection (Pursuant to Section P4, 
Schedule A (f) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Proposal:  
  
This application seeks planning permission for the demolition of the existing dwelling and its 
replacement with a two storey dwelling with additional accommodation (swimming pool, gym etc) 
in the basement. 

Page 42



 
The replacement dwelling would have a slightly larger footprint than the existing dwelling and 
would be located further away from the side boundary of the site with 22 Connaught Avenue.   
 
Description of Site:  
   
The application property is a detached chalet bungalow located in Connaught Avenue.  The street 
is characterised by large detached houses which are predominantly two storeys in height.  In this 
respect, the existing property is an anomaly within the street.   
 

Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1518/07.  Demolition of existing, and erection of new six bedroom house with accommodation 
at basement level.  Refused 15/01/08.   
 
The application was refused for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed dwelling would have a cramped appearance within the street scene by virtue 
of its proximity to the side boundary of the site, contrary to policy DBE1 of the adopted 
Local Plan and Alterations.   

 
2. The varying roof pitches and complex roof form of the proposed dwelling result in it having 

an incongruous appearance which would be harmful to the character and appearance of 
the area, contrary to policy DBE1 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations.   

 
Policies Applied: 
 
Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 
 
DBE1 – Design of New Buildings 
DBE2/9 – Impact of New Development 
DBE6 – Residential Car Parking 
DBE8 – Private Amenity Space 
ST6 – Vehicle Parking 
 
Issues and Considerations:  
  
The main issues to be taken into consideration when determining this application are: 
 

1. The impact of the new dwelling on the amenities enjoyed by the occupiers of neighbouring 
dwellings; 

2. The impact of the new dwelling on the character and appearance of the area; 
3. The level of amenity that would be enjoyed by the occupiers for the proposed dwelling; and  
4. The acceptability of the proposed off-street parking provision.   

 
Impact on the amenities enjoyed by the occupiers of neighbouring dwellings 
 
The new dwelling would extend slightly to the rear of no. 18, although not to the extent that it is 
considered that there would be any material loss of light or outlook.  The dwelling would not extend 
to the rear of no.22, although this property does have several windows in the side which would 
receive less light due to the extension.  The side of this neighbouring dwelling would be 
approximately 10 metres from the side of the proposed dwelling.  There are two windows in the 
side at ground floor level, both of which provide light to the living room.  However, as this also 
receives light from a set of patio doors and a conservatory to the rear, it is not considered that any 

Page 43



loss of light to the side windows would be material.  At first floor level, the window serves a 
bedroom.  It is also a secondary window and any loss of light would not, therefore, be material.  
This window presently has a view over no. 20 across Loughton and this view would be 
considerably restricted by the proposed development.  However, the loss of a view is not 
justification for the refusal of planning permission.  There is also a window in the side gable of the 
dwelling, providing light to the roof space.  As the roof space is only used for storage purposes, 
this loss of light would not be material.   
 
Balconies are proposed to the front and rear elevations of the dwelling.  It is not considered that 
the balcony to the front of the dwelling would result in any material overlooking, as it would face 
onto the street, which is a public vantage point.  The rear balcony would be screened on both 
sides by a projection of the building on the side nearest to no. 18 and by an obscure glazed screen 
standing 1.7 metres tall on the side closest to no. 22.  It is considered that this would be sufficient 
to avoid any material overlooking of neighbouring gardens.  Concern has been expressed by the 
occupiers of the neighbouring property to the rear (15 Ollards Grove) that there would be 
overlooking of this property.  However, the new dwelling would retain a garden in excess of 25 
metres in depth and it is not, therefore, considered that overlooking of properties to the rear would 
be material.   

 
Impact on the character and appearance of the area 
 
The principle of a two storey detached dwelling on this site is considered to be in keeping with the 
character and appearance of this area.  Furthermore, it is considered the height of the proposed 
dwelling, which would be between the heights of 18 and 22 Connaught Avenue, would be in 
keeping with the street scene.  There have been significant amendments to the design of the 
building following the refusal of the previous scheme.  Most notably, these relate to a reduction in 
the width of the building which will ensure the retention of a gap of at least 1.5 metres to both side 
boundaries and the redesigning of the roof of the proposed dwelling, which result in it having a 
more integral overall appearance.  It is considered that the alterations to the design of the dwelling 
have addressed the concerns which were previously raised, to the extent that the revised design 
would be in keeping with the street scene.   

 
Level of amenity of the proposed dwelling 
 
All habitable rooms within the dwelling would receive an acceptable level of natural light, outlook 
and privacy. 
 
Parking 
 
Sufficient space is retained at the front of the dwelling for off street parking for at least two 
vehicles.   

 
Other Matters 
 
Two local residents have raised concerns regarding the potential for subsidence arsing from the 
construction of the proposed basement.  However, there is no evidence of previous instances of 
this occurring to suggest that this would be an issue in this locality.  Furthermore, it is considered 
that this matter is one which falls outside of the remit of the Local Planning Authority as it is dealt 
with under separate legislation.   

 
Concern has also been raised by a local resident regarding the potential for damage to the 
surrounding highway caused by construction traffic.  However, there are no special circumstances 
relating to the highway surrounding this site that would suggest that this is something which would 
be a particular problem in this location.  Furthermore, as above it is considered that any damage 
caused would be dealt with under separate legislation, enforceable by the Highway Authority.   

Page 44



 
Conclusion 
 
In light of the above appraisal, it is considered that the proposed development would not give rise 
to any material harm to the amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring dwellings and would have 
an acceptable appearance within the street scene.  The proposed dwelling itself would have an 
acceptable level of amenity for future occupiers and adequate provision is made for off-street 
parking.  Accordingly, it is recommended that planning permission be granted.   
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:  
 
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL.  No objection.   
 
22 CONNAUGHT AVENUE.  Objection.  Up to 12 people could occupy the house.  This has 
severe implications for parking and access with only 2 parking spaces provided on site.  The road 
is already heavily congested.  Concerned that the digging out of the large basement could 
destabilise the hill and cause subsidence to no. 22.  Concerned that heavy lorries and plant during 
construction would damage the pavement and road.  The two storey pediment at the front is out of 
keeping with other properties in the area, the higher section being particularly objectionable.   
 
24 CONNAUGHT AVENUE.  Objection.  Concerned regarding impacts arising from the 
construction of the basement.  If subsidence is caused to number 22, this could then affect our 
property.  Also concerned regarding lack of parking.   
 
15 OLLARDS GROVE.  Objection.  Concerned regarding the first floor balcony to bedroom no. 4.  
The proposed screen would provide little or no loss of privacy to the adjoining properties.  We 
were advised that a balcony would not be permitted at our property when we made a planning 
application to extend in 2005/6 – the approval of a balcony at no. 20 would be a contradiction of 
that standard.  Also concerned regarding the roof window, which suggests that additional 
accommodation could be provided at a later date, causing further privacy and overlooking issues.  
The buildings ground level remains elevated above the average ground level of the site.   
 
15A OLLARDS GROVE.  Objection.  The new building for a five bedroom house is not appropriate 
to the area.  Parking is already heavily congested in Connaught Avenue and Ollards Grove.  We 
are still concerned about the height of the building, the balcony overlooks our garden and 
conservatory.  The obscure glass at the end of the balcony will provide no privacy to us or our 
adjoining neighbours.  Also concerned regarding the roof window, possible additional bedroom at 
a later date.   
 
 
 
 

Page 45



 
 
123 

 
 

 
 
  

 

 
 

1

6

15

10

4
17

11

14

27

21

18

18

28

41

34

28
a

17

15a

15

31

30

26

28

15

7

6

3

11

LB

C
O

N
N

A
U

G
H

T A
V

EN
U

E

OLLARD'S GROVE

C
O

N
N

A
U

G
H

T
 H

ILL

CONNAUGHT AVENUE

FOREST VIEW ROA

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

5 

Application Number: EPF/1231/08 

Site Name: 20 Connaught Avenue, Loughton 
IG10 4DS 

Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 46



Report Item No: 6 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1411/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 2C Goldings Road 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 2QN 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton St Johns 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Arafat  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Replace existing garage and rear extension with two storey 
side extension and loft conversion with rear dormer to provide  
1 no. one bedroom flat and 1 no. two bedroom flat. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match 
those of the existing building. 
 

3 Prior to first occupation of the building hereby approved the proposed window 
openings in first floor flank shall be fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames, 
and shall be permanently retained in that condition. 
 

4 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting the Order) no windows other than any shown on 
the approved plan shall be formed at any time in the first floor flank walls of the 
development hereby permitted without the prior written approval of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

5 Prior to the commencement of the development details of the proposed surface 
materials for the driveway shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The agreed surface treatment shall be completed prior to the 
first occupation of the development. 
 

6 Gates shall not be erected on the vehicular access to the site without the prior 
written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 47



 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of proposal: 
 
Replace existing single storey garage and rear extension with two storey side extension and loft 
conversion with rear dormer to provide one x 1 bed flat and one x 2 bed flat. 
 
Description of Site: 
 
A detached two storey house on a rectangular plot on the west side of Goldings Road just north of 
the junction with Englands Lane. The area has a mix of terraced and semi detached single 
dwelling houses, and slopes up to the north across the site. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
CHI/0146/51  Garage and storeroom    approved 
EPF/0216/88  Single storey rear extension    approved 
EPF/0414/00  Loft conversion     approved 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP1, 3, 6 & 7 Core Policies re sustainable development 
H1A, H2A, H3A, H4A Housing Provision 
DBE 1, 2 Design of new buildings 
ST4 & 6 Highways & Parking 
DBE 6   Parking 
DBE 8   Amenity Space 
DBE 9   Amenity for neighbours 
DBE 10 Design 
DBE 11 Subdivision 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues in this application are: 

1. Context of scheme and Subdivision 
2. Design 
3. Neighbours Amenity 
4. Amenity Space 
5. Sustainability 
6. Highways Matters 

 
Building in Context 
- The plot is a maximum of 12.5m wide and about 24m deep.  
- The existing property is a two storey detached house which spreads across most of the width 

of the plot due to the previously approved garage and rear extension, which is, however, only 
single storey.  

- The new building will be attached to the existing two-storey dwelling at 2C Goldings Road, and 
would measure 5m wide by 19m deep and 8m high with a gable end pitched roof.    

- The scheme will see the continuation of the first floor of No 2C over the garage in a mirror 
image when viewed from the front, and gives the appearance of a pair of semi detached 
houses. 

- A gap of 2.7m will remain to the neighbour to the north (2D), which is slightly higher due to the 
change in levels across the sites. 

Page 48



- On the rear elevation the scheme will be no deeper than the existing structure, with a modest 
first floor projection from the roof slope with a hipped roof, and a flat roofed dormer on the rear 
roof slope. 

- The existing large dormer on 2C will be reduced to a more appropriate and less intrusive size.  
- 2 parking spaces will be provided on the front of the new building and 1 provided for the 

existing house, with space for another if required.  
- There is no proposal before the Council to convert No 2C to flats, which will remain as a single 

dwelling house. 
- The scheme can be comfortably accommodated on this plot and would not be either out of 

keeping or too large a development. The plot is wider than neighbouring properties and 
suitable for sub-division. 

- Therefore it is the case that the physical works will have no adverse impact on the character 
and appearance of the street scene. 

- With regard to the impact of providing flats in this residential area it is the case that this is an 
area of single occupied dwellings. However, the provision of these two flats will not cause any 
unacceptable harm to the character of the street or the immediate area by their use as flats.  

- Nor does it set an unwelcome precedent, as each case must be assessed on its own merits, 
and there are no other similar sites in the street which would lend themselves to a similar 
scheme.  

- The scheme would also be in line with national housing policies to provide a mix of housing 
types in urban areas. 

- It is also the case that this site is classed as previously developed land in an urban area. The 
efficient reuse of such urban land is a national and local priority and this scheme complies with 
this priority.   

 
Design 
- The scheme has the appearance of a pair of semi detached houses and is not a ‘standard’ flat 

development, and would not be out of place in this diverse street scene. 
- Both of the flat roofed dormers are reduced in size and height from the current large and bulky 

dormer and would not justify a refusal on design grounds.  
- The materials can be conditioned to be appropriate to the area. 
 
Amenity & Impact on Neighbours 
- The main neighbours that would be affected are No 2B and 2 Goldings Road. 
- Due to the careful design of the scheme there would be no adverse loss of light or sunlight to 

either neighbour. 
- No 5A is 25m away from the scheme across the road and it causes no adverse loss of amenity 

to them.  
- There will be no adverse overlooking of any neighbour.  
- The scheme will cause no adverse loss of visual outlook to any neighbour. 
- The scheme has also been designed so that the main living spaces are on the opposite side of 

the building to the party wall with the existing dwelling, reducing the potential for an adverse 
impact on the amenities of the occupants of this property.  

 
Sustainability & Urban Development 
- This is previously developed land. In both Policy CP6, 7 and PPS3, priority is given to the 

reuse of previously developed land in urban areas, but this should not be at the expense of the 
quality of the local environment and unsympathetic change.  

- It is considered that this is a good quality and sympathetic scheme.  
 
Amenity Space 
- The two flats will have amenity space in the rear garden of 42m², slightly below the Local Plan 

recommendation of 50m². However this is a minor shortfall and would not justify a refusal on 
these grounds. 

Page 49



- The existing house will still have an amenity space of 127m² which is in line with the 
requirements of the Local Plan. 

 
Highways 
- The scheme will provide a total of 3 parking spaces, 1 for the existing house, and 2 for the new 

flats, which is in line with current parking standards.  
- There are no adverse highway safety implications as a result of this scheme and the site is in 

walking distance of bus routes.  
 
Conclusion 
 
In principle, Local Plan policy DBE11 supports sub-division to flats provided it does not set an 
undesirable precedent nor detract from the character of the surrounding area, nor result in 
excessive noise and disturbance to residents. This will not set a precedent because of its size 
comparative to its neighbours, and the external changes and use would not harm the character of 
the area. The extension will be in keeping with the host building without harm caused to the 
amenity of neighbours. As it is only one conversion in the whole of the street, it will not be 
detrimental and will in fact provide efficient use of urban land in a sustainable location. The 
application is therefore recommended for approval. 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS 
 
TOWN COUNCIL – Object, contrary to policies DBE8, 9, 10(i) and 11(i) of the Local Plan. There 
were concerns that this proposal for 2 flats would set an unacceptable precedent in this residential 
road of family houses. The Committee considered the extension to be overbearing and having an 
adverse visual effect on neighbouring properties. There were also concerns about the lack of 
amenity space and parking provision and the potential loss of light to neighbouring properties. 
 
LOUGHTON RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION – Object, out of character with its surrounds and 
constitutes inappropriate development. Design will cause disturbance to the attached property on 
the upper floor.  
 
2 GOLDINGS ROAD – Object, use is not appropriate to the area and an intensification, local 
character will be adversely affected, will affect light to our property, overlook our garden 
 
2A GOLDINGS ROAD – Object, large building which will be totally out of place, car parking will be 
affected. 
 
2B GOLDINGS ROAD – Object, spoil the existing house, don’t want to live next door to flats, 
conversion will lower the standard of the road, occupants of flats will cause disruption to our family. 
3 GOLDINGS ROAD – Object, out of keeping with the area and an overdevelopment, will look like 
a block of flats, multiple occupation will change the character of the area, road safety will be 
compromised. 
 
4 GOLDINGS ROAD – Object, flats will affect road safety and carbon footprint; we will be 
overlooked in the rear garden, inappropriate development as no other flats in Goldings Road. 
 
5A GOLDINGS ROAD – Object, will lose sunlight to our lounge and bedroom.  
 
7 GOLDINGS ROAD – Object, turn a home into a block, will overpower the neighbouring homes 
and is out of character, parking problems will be exacerbated with lack of spaces (two objections) 
 
 
 
 

Page 50



 
 
123 

 
 

 
 
  

 

 
 

CW
FW

FW
CF

CW

Und

CF

FW
CW

31c

14

2
1

El Sub Sta

96

100

131b131 131a

129127

15

105

35

113
119

25

2
2b 1a

3a
5

3
5a

10

7
7a

12a

9a
11

11a

13a

13

16

9

15

45

Hillside

93

86

85

8476

97

80

5

66

77

75

62

69

R
ee

 L
an

e 
C

ot
ta

ge
s

11

57

67

30 18

47
37 27

LB

COLES GREEN

COLES GREEN

ROFT

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

6 

Application Number: EPF/1411/08 

Site Name: 2C Goldings Road, Loughton 
IG10 2QN 

Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 51



Report Item No: 7 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1703/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Woodberrie House 

Woodbury Hill 
Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 1JB 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton St Johns 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Roger Leake  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: New porch to front and single storey side extension. (Revised 
application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 
 

3 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a tree 
/hedgerow protection plan, to include all the relevant details of tree/hedgerow 
protection has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in 
writing. 
 
The statement must include a plan showing the area to be protected and fencing in 
accordance with the relevant British Standard (Trees in Relation to Construction-
Recommendations; BS.5837:2005).  It must also specify any other means needed to 
ensure that all of the trees/hedgerow to be retained will not be harmed during the 
development, including by damage to their root system, directly or indirectly. 
 
The statement must explain how the protection will be implemented, including 
responsibility for site supervision, control and liaison with the LPA. 
  
The trees/hedgerow must be protected in accordance with the agreed statement 
throughout the period of development, unless the Local Planning Authority has given 
its prior written consent to any variation. 
 

 
 
 

Page 52



 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
This is a revised scheme following a previous refusal under planning ref: EPF/0458/07. The 
revised details are for the erection of a new front porch and single storey side extension with side 
bay window to the south facing flank wall. 
 
Description of Site:  
 
The subject site is a 1980s one and a half storey detached chalet bungalow built on split levels 
sited to the north-western side of Woodbury Hill and the ground level slopes down steeply to the 
northern boundary of the site. The dwellings within proximity of the site are individually styled and 
set in a staggered layout. The site and surrounding area is situated within the constraints of 
Woodbury Hill Conservation area with the added constraint of the Metropolitan Green Belt 
boundary.  
 
Relevant History: 
 
 Approved 1997 EPF/1683/97 – Single storey side extension and roof light to front 
 Refused in 2006 EPF/1776/06 - Replacement sheds with 2 new sheds.  

Reasons: Material would be out of character and harmful to the character and appearance of 
the Conservation Area 

 Approved in 2007 EPF/0045/07 - Demolition of three garden sheds and replacement two new 
sheds.  

 Refused 2007 EPF/0458/07 – Two x single storey side extensions, side dormer window and 
front porch 
Reason: The side extension and bay window on the south flank wall on the boundary with the 
adjacent footpath would seriously threaten and result in the loss of an existing hedgerow, 
exposing the view of the proposal from the footpath and hence impair the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area 

 
Policies Applied: 
 
Green Belt, Conservation and Residential Development Policies from Epping Forest District 
Council’s Replacement Local Plan: - 
GB2A – Development within the Green Belt 
GB14A – Extensions to Residential Dwellings in the Green Belt 
HC6 – Development within Conservation Areas 
HC7 – Standard of development within Conservation Areas 
DBE4 – New buildings in the Green Belt  
DBE9 – Amenity considerations. 
 
Issues and Considerations:  
 
The main issues in considering this revised application are whether the reasons for the previous 
refusal have been overcome in relation to the potential harm to the hedgerow together with the 
design and appearance of the resultant dwelling to the character of conservation area and 
appropriateness of extension within the Metropolitan Green Belt. 
 
Amenity 
 

Page 53



• The description of this proposal as with the previously refused scheme is for the erection of a 
front porch and one and a half storey side extension with side bay window to the south flank 
wall. 

• The neighbour that will be most affected from the proposal is adjacent neighbour to the south 
boundary of the site, Woodberrie Knoll. The site is on a lower level in relation to the 
neighbouring site and is demarcated with a public footpath which is additionally screened by 
high hedges on the boundary with this site. Therefore, the proposals will not result in any harm 
to the amenities of this neighbour and complies with the relevant policies. 

 
Design and appearance of extensions on the character of the conservation area and green belt 
 
• The proposed extensions to the south flank wall and front porch extension are relatively small-

scaled extensions. The size of the front porch will project to a depth of 1.0m x 3.0m in width 
and the side extension measures to a maximum depth of 4.9m x 1.9m in width with a separate 
1.0m x 2.4m bay window addition. 

• The design of the front porch adopts a pitched roof design that complements the façade of the 
dwelling. The one and a half storey side extension and bay window is finished with a pitched 
roof that minimises the visual impact of the extensions when viewed from the footpath. 

• The house has not been extended from when it was originally built in the early 1980s. It is 
therefore considered that due to the modest size, scale and design of the extensions with 
appropriate materials the additions will not result in any harm to the appearance of the dwelling 
and will not result in a conspicuous development within the green belt. 

 
Other consideration 
 
• The side extension will be built within proximity of the hedges along the public footpath. These 

hedges form important boundary markers effectively screening the dwelling from neighbouring 
Woodberrie Knoll and users of the public footpath. These functions raise the amenity value of 
the hedge and strongly support the need for its retention, which was the reason for the 
previous refusal under planning ref: EPF/0458/07. 

• The revised scheme takes into account adequate protection measures in order to retain the 
established hedgerow and the Council’s Tree Officer supports this revised scheme on the 
proviso that appropriate conditions will be imposed to protect the established hedgerow before 
and during the construction phase. This overcomes the reasons for the previous refusal. 

• While the Town Council’s objections have been taken into account and duly noted, with the 
appropriate protection measures, the proposal will not result in any harm to the established 
hedgerow. 

  
Conclusion 
 
The revised scheme takes into account the reasons for the previous refusal and the proposal will 
not result in any harm to the established hedgerow. The design of the extensions will not be out of 
character within the conservation area. Therefore, this scheme complies with the relevant Local 
Plan Policies and as such is recommended for approval with conditions. 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:  
 
TOWN COUNCIL: The Committee OBJECTED to this revised application as it felt the proposed 
side extension would still be too close to the boundary posing a threat to the existing hedgerow 
with the resulting exposure of the building from the footpath impairing the character and the 
appearance of the Conservation Area. The Committee agreed that it was contrary to Policies LL10 
& HC6 of Epping Forest District Council’s adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 
 

Page 54



 
 
123 

 
 

 
 
  

 

 
 

83.2m

80.5m

6

Dryad's Hall

Dryad's Hall

8

87

85a

3

1

3

9

11

5

7

1

11

Woodberrie

High

2

Mulberry

15

House
Woodbury

Woodberrie Knoll

Hollow

2

Woodbury Hollow

1

Woodbury

W
ALL

ER'S
 H

OPP
ET

YO
RK

 H
IL

L

WOODBURY HILL

POTTERS CLOSE

CLOSE

POTTERS

W
OO

DB
U

RY
 H

IL
L

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

7 

Application Number: EPF/1703/08 

Site Name: Woodberrie House, Woodbury Hill 
Loughton, IG10 1JB 

Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 55



 Report Item No: 8 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1779/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 9 - 11 High Beech Road 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 4BN 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Forest 
 

APPLICANT: Littlecroft Properties Ltd  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Ground and first floor extensions to sides, first floor infill 
extension to rear, new roof and front elevation remodelling. 
(Resubmitted application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 
 

3 Prior to first occupation of the building hereby approved the proposed window 
openings in the first and second floor side elevations shall be fitted with obscured 
glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7m above the internal floor level, and 
shall be permanently retained in that condition. 
 

4 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting the Order) no windows other than any shown on 
the approved plan shall be formed at any time in the firsst floor flank walls of the 
development hereby permitted without the prior written approval of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

5 Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during 
construction works shall be installed in accordance with details which shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these 
facilities installed prior to the commencement of any building works on site, and shall 
be used to clean vehicles leaving the site. 
 

Page 56



 
6 Before the commencement of the development or any works on site, details of the 

landscaping of the site, including retention of trees and other natural features, shall 
be submitted in writing for the approval of the Local Planning Authority, and shall be 
carried out as approved. 
 

7 The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first 
occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the 
parking of staff and visitors' vehicles. 
 

8 Prior to the commencement of the development, details illustrating the provision of 
secure covered bicycle and motorbike parking shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The parking shall be implemented in 
accordance with these agreed details and shall be provided prior to the first use of 
the offices and maintained on site thereafter unless the LPA gives its written consent 
to any variation. 
 

9 Provision shall be made for shower and changing facilities prior to first use of the 
premises hereby approved, the details of which shall have been previously 
submitted for approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The shower 
and changing facilities shall be implemented in accordance with these details and 
retained in situ thereafter unless otherwise agreed in writing by the LPA. 
 

10 Measures shall be taken to ensure that no surface water shall drain onto the 
highway. 
 

11 Prior to the commencement of the development, the method of construction of the 
foundations shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority (LPA) The foundations shall be constructed in accordance with these 
approved details unless the LPA gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

12 The rating level of noise (as defined by BS4142:1997) emitted from any plant room 
and any air conditioning units shall not exceed 5db(A) above the prevailing 
background noise level. The measurement position and assessment shall be made 
according to BS4142:1997. 
 

13 Prior to the commencement of the development, a scheme that provides storage of 
refuse waste shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority (LPA). The scheme shall be carried out in accordance with these approved 
details prior to the occupation of the offices and shall be retained thereafter at all 
times unless otherwise agreed in writing by the LPA. 
 

14 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations (which includes deliveries 
and other commercial vehicles to and from the site) which are audible at the 
boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of 
07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no 
time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 

15 The use hereby approved shall not be commenced until details of a Green Travel 
Plan containing a travel to work car use and car parking arrangement strategy of the 
development as a whole has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The Plan shall comprise details to reduce car dependence and 
vehicle emissions and to establish and encourage the use of alternative transport 
modes of journeys to and from work and during working hours, including how to 

Page 57



deter visitors arriving and departing by motor car.  Details of the proposals shall 
include measures to secure increases in car sharing, public transport use, cycling 
and walking, proposals for car parking restrictions and controls and details of on-site 
facilities to promote alternative modes of travel to the site. The plan shall contain 
relevant surveys, publicity and marketing; review and monitoring mechanisms shall 
identify targets, timescales and phasing programmes and on-site management 
responsibilities. The plan shall be implemented as approved and be subject to 
annual review for the first 5 years. This shall be carried out in conjunction with the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
This application is before this Committee for the following reasons: 
 

• This application is before this Committee since it is an application for commercial 
development and the recommendation differs from more than one expression of objection 
(Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (f) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 

 
• This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views 

of the local council (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated 
Functions). 

 
Description of Proposal: 
 
This application seeks planning permission for extensions to the existing office building.  
 
An existing two-storey side extension would be brought forward to align with the adjacent building 
and on the other side, the ground floor infilled under an existing first floor. In both cases, matching 
central ridged pitching roofs will be added to existing non-conforming roofs. In addition, a pair of 
double height bay windows will be built onto the front façade of the existing building. 
 
At the rear, a first floor extension is proposed in between two similar rear projections. There will 
also be a reduction in the footprint of the ground floor at the rear with the removal of an existing 
single-storey extension to create an extended car parking area for 6 cars, accessed as existing 
from Smarts Lane.    
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site comprises a two storey building located on the eastern side of High Beech 
Road. The surrounding area is predominantly residential, however the building immediately to the 
north of the site is a taller three storey office block, which has a Mansard roof. The building 
immediately to the south is a two-storey residential building with a front bay window. The 
application building has a plain 1960s façade,  linked to those either side by flat roofed ‘additions’, 
one of which has a void at ground floor level, allowing access to the entrance in the side of the 
building.  
 
The road comprises a mixture of building styles, with two storey houses predominant. Three storey 
townhouses are directly opposite the site. Immediately to the rear are houses at No. 14b – 18 
Smarts Lane. Their rear gardens back onto the site and the applicant’s car parking area is 
accessed via a driveway off of Smarts Lane, between nos. 18 and 18a. 
 

Page 58



Within the vicinity of the site there are two public car parks; Smarts Lane and High Beech Lane.  
These are well used car parks and invariably nearly full during the day.   Both Smarts Lane and 
High Beech Road have single yellow lines along one side with restrictions between 0930-1830.  
The other sides of both roads are generally parked up. However, these roads and car parks are 
very close to the main High Road commercial area. There is a mature street tree just in front of the 
site.   
 
Relevant History: 
 
CHIG/125/54 – Alterations to form offices.  Granted permission on 16/6/1954. 
CHIG/125A/54 – Alterations to form offices Granted permission on 20/3/1957. 
CHIG/27/63 – Erection of addition to offices. Granted permission on 20/2/1963. 
CHIG/267/66 – Erection of addition to offices Granted permission on 20/10/1966. 
EPF/1558/06 - Demolition of existing office and erection of three storey office.  Refused 
permission on 07/12/2006 (appeal subsequently withdrawn). 
EPF/2640/07 - Extensions to offices – refused permission on 05/03/2008, currently subject of an 
appeal with a public inquiry set for 2 days in December. 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP3 – New development 
CP6 – Achieving sustainable urban development patterns 
CP9 – Sustainable transport 
E4A – Protection of employment sites 
DBE1 – Design of new buildings 
DBE2 – Effect of new buildings on surrounding area 
DBE9 – Amenity considerations 
ST4 – Highway safety 
ST6 – Vehicle parking 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issue to be considered in this application are: 
 

1. The impact of the proposed dwelling on the occupiers of neighbouring dwellings; 
2. The impact of the proposed development on the character and appearance of the area; 

and  
3. The impact of the proposed development on highways and parking.   

 
Background 
 
This site has been subject of a planning application in 2008 (EPF/2640/07) for extensions to the 
existing office building to provide more office accommodation. This was considered at Sub 
Committee South on 07 March 2008 with an Officers recommendation for approval.  
 
The Committee refused the application, citing the reasons for refusal as: 
 

1. The increase in height in relation to the adjoining buildings would have a detrimental 
effect upon the street scene. 

2. The extension would appear over dominant and have a harmful visual impact upon the 
occupants of neighbouring residential properties to the rear in Smarts Lane. 

3. Inadequate information was submitted in respect of staff levels and a travel plan, and 
together with inadequate provision for off-street parking in the site, the proposed 
substantial increase in office floor space would result in parking and traffic congestion. 

 

Page 59



This refusal has been appealed and is to be subject of a Public Inquiry later this year. The 
applicant asked for the appeal to be placed in abeyance whilst this further application is submitted, 
which the Planning Inspectorate have agreed to. 
 
Applicants Case 
 
Compared with the previous planning application, the applicants agent has provided more 
information including clearer elevations showing 3 dimensions of the proposed extensions relative 
to the street scene and neighbouring buildings, shadow diagrams showing before and after light 
impact, aerial views and further facilities to encourage use of public transport by staff (showers, 
Travel Plan Notice Board). He states that the application is to upgrade and provide a modest 
increase in floor space and more efficient use of the existing building for office purposes.    
 
In addition the appellant has drawn to our attention the outcome of a series of recent appeals 
concerning 1 Connaught Avenue, which he also owns and is in close walking distance of the 
application site. It too is an office building in need of modernising and was the subject of three 
applications lodged with the Council in 2007 for a two storey extension, a further single storey 
extension combined with the two storey extension, and after these two applications had been 
refused, a separate application for single storey extension.  
 
Members overturned Officer recommendations and refused all three applications on the grounds 
of adverse impact on the street scene, adverse impact on the amenities of immediate neighbours, 
and lack of parking provision and sustainable travel options. A 3-day Public Inquiry appeal against 
these refusals heard evidence from the immediate neighbour, with his own Planning barrister and 
Planning Agent, a  Councillor of this Committee, a Planning Officer and an independent Highways 
Consultant (County Highways Officers had raised no objection to the planning applications).  
 
All three appeals were allowed, and the Council’s case was dismissed. A separate application for 
costs by the appellant was successful for both of the first two applications and partially successful 
for the third application. This is a substantial sum and is about to be settled.  
 
The applicant has stated that the issues at High Beech Road, whilst not identical, are very similar 
to that of No 1 Connaught Avenue, viz: impact on street scene, neighbours and parking. The sites 
are in the same location (south Loughton in streets of a residential character just off of the High 
Street), and for serviced offices, with limited on-site parking, close to excellent public transport 
links. 
 
He has instructed the same team of Barristers and Professional Experts to that assembled for the 
Connaught Avenue appeal and has been advised that they are very confident of success in this 
forthcoming appeal.  
 
He has therefore submitted this planning application for this site with further supporting information 
in relation to the street scene and residential amenity issues, and agrees a travel plan for the site, 
and hopes that the Committee will review this further information and grant permission, avoiding 
the cost and burden on all parties’ time and resources in preparing and taking part in a public 
inquiry. Should this application be granted planning permission, the applicant will withdraw his 
appeal. 
 
Officer Comments on applicants case 
 
It is of course a matter for Member’s to decide whether they feel the extra supporting information 
this time is sufficient for the Committee to come to an alternative view and support the Officer’s 
recommendation to grant planning permission. 
 

Page 60



Officer’s view is that given the Planning Inspector’s judgement and award of costs against the 
Council, there are similar issues in this case and a prospect that the same decision could be made 
here. The applicant has assembled the same team of planning consultants and barrister and will 
make an application for costs. The Council should not of course decline to support a planning 
application because of the fear of costs, but its reasons do need to be substantiated. In the case of 
1 Connaught Avenue, this was difficult because the street scene is varied, parking not such an 
issue because of the proximity to the High Street and public transport and the effect on the 
amenity of neighbours not significant.  
  
The same issues relate to this site, but this time there is more information in the plans for 
Members in the terms of the analysis of visual impact, sunlight and daylight matters that were not 
evident before. Officers support their previous reasons for recommending grant of planning 
permission and this is further confirmed in the submission of this additional material. 
 
Impact on neighbours 
 
Concern has been raised by the occupiers of properties opposite the site that the proposed 
development would give rise to a material loss of privacy.  However, these properties are 
separated from the site by the street and it is not considered that the relationship between the 
buildings would be worse than others within the vicinity.   
 
It is considered that properties in Smarts Lane, to the rear of the application site, would be more 
affected.  16 and 16a are directly behind the site, located a distance of between approximately 8.5 
and 14 metres away.  Accordingly, the view from these properties (which appear to be relatively 
recent additions to the street) is presently limited.  The upper floor of the application building is set 
back a further 3.5 metres from these properties.  The main alteration which would affect these 
properties would be the infilling of the first floor rear, resulting in an almost continuous frontage 
and the insertion of roof lights.  The roof lights would be approximately 1.5 metres above floor 
level.  Due to their height and restricted view that would arise from the angle at which the roof 
lights would be set, it is not considered that any overlooking would be greater than that which 
presently exists from the first floor windows.  There may be an increase in resident’s perception of 
being overlooked, but having regard to the position and number of windows presently in the rear 
elevation, it is not considered that this would be so harmful as to justify the refusal of planning 
permission.  
 
 Residents in Smarts Lane have also raised objections on the basis of loss of light.  As the 
application site is located to the west of these residential properties, it is considered likely that 
there would be some loss of later afternoon/evening sun caused by the addition of pitched roofs to 
the flat roofed sections of the building.  However, this would not be significant given the widths of 
these sections of the building and due to the heights of existing buildings either side.  Furthermore, 
it is not considered that the additions are substantial enough to cause a material loss of daylight.  
Due to the ‘infill’ nature of the extensions proposed, it is not considered that there would be any 
material reduction in outlook.   
 
The neighbouring property, 7 High Beech Lane is also residential and is within the applicant’s 
ownership.  This property has an area of garden to the rear and a second area of garden to the 
side, which is afforded some privacy by boundary planting.  As the bulk of the extension to the side 
of the application building would infill the existing void, this would not impact upon the garden area 
of no. 7.  However, the single storey addition to the rear of the building would extend along the 
remainder of the rear garden of this property.  This would have only a limited additional impact on 
this property, due to the present impact of the existing building.     
 

Page 61



Character and Appearance   
 
It is considered that the proposed alterations would improve the appearance of the building and 
would, therefore, have a positive impact on the visual amenities of the area.  The addition of the 
pitched roofs and the addition of the bays in the front elevation would enhance what is presently a 
fairly dated and bland elevation. Similar features exist in the street (bay window on the adjacent 
building) and the present flat roofs are an unfortunate reminder of 1960’s design that do not 
conform to this or neighbouring buildings. In streetscape terms, the extensions will enhance the 
appearance of the building. The new roof will be at a shallower roof angle and higher ridge than 
no.7, but it conforms to good design principles, relating well to the host building and in a visually 
varied part of the street scene, it will not appear incongruous or out of keeping.  
 
Highways and Parking 
 
The application proposes six car parking spaces to the rear of the site.  These are not additional 
parking spaces; the existing, rather informal, layout would be revised.   
 
Parking issues were not stated as a reason for refusal for the previous application on this site.  
Concern has been raised about the additional parking that would be generated as a result of this 
development. Whilst this is acknowledged and understood, the site is located in a highly 
accessible location, and is well served by public transport. Parking standards no longer require 
minimum provision of parking spaces for new developments, but set maximum levels to reduce 
reliance on the private car and encourage more sustainable means of transport.  In this instance, 
the maximum standard for the total development would be 16 spaces.   
 
This development proposes secure bicycle and motorcycle parking, and the applicant has stated 
that showering and changing facilities will be provided for staff who opt to walk or cycle to work. 
Additionally, the applicant advises that a Travel Plan notice board will be provided in a prominent 
location, this will be used to display public transport timetables and advertise car sharing 
opportunities. It is not considered that the proposed development would attract large numbers of 
additional people to the site and accordingly, a Travel Plan is not required by Policy ST5 of the 
local plan.  Notwithstanding this, it is considered that the initiatives that are put forward voluntarily 
by the applicant, together with the location of the building means that the development complies 
with the principles of sustainable development.  For these reasons, it is considered that the 
provision of parking below the maximum standard is justified.   
 
Conclusion 
 
The level of objection to this development and the comments made have been fully considered.  
However, in light of the above appraisal, the submitted clearer evidence and the recent appeal at 
Connaught Avenue, it is considered that the proposed development would not be detrimental to 
the occupiers of neighbouring residential properties and would improve the appearance of the 
building within the street scene.  Furthermore, it is considered that the proposed level of car 
parking is justified. Whilst appreciating the objections raised by local residents, the fact remains 
that there are already windows and extensions at this level and position and the three dimensional 
drawings demonstrate how they relate to the main building and the locality without causing visual 
harm. Accordingly, it is recommended that planning permission be granted.   
 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS  
 
The Town Council have not yet responded to the scheme and their comments will be reported 
orally to the Committee. Their previous comments were:  
 

Page 62



LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL.  Objection.  The Committee objected to this application which is 
contrary to Policy DBE9 (ii) of EFDC’s adopted Local Plan and Alterations due to overlooking at 
the rear, intensification of parking and road safety problems in an already dangerous street.   
 
14 SMARTS LANE.  Objection.  This is an overdevelopment, bulkier and will bring the building 
within feet of the Smarts Lane properties, increase overlooking and reduce privacy, loss of light. 
 
14a SMARTS LANE.  Objection still applies - Will take away privacy and daylight.  Will bring more 
pollution and noise to us.   
 
16a SMARTS LANE.  Objection.  Will take away privacy and daylight.  Will bring more pollution 
and noise to us. Is no different from the last application and should be refused.  
 
18 SMARTS LANE.  Objection.  This would result in an excessive and intrusive level of 
overlooking to residents in Smarts Lane.  It would be an overdevelopment of the site in terms of 
scale and bulk.  The design is not on keeping with the existing environment and would be visually 
intrusive to the street scene.  The development would intensify the parking situation. 
 
22 SMARTS LANE. Objection, is part of a residential conservation area and will bring more cars 
and people into an already full to capacity area.  
 
24a HIGH BEECH ROAD.  Objection still stands.  The extension will cause mess, noise and 
inconvenience.  Parking will worsen.  The top floor will look directly into my bedroom invading my 
privacy.  There is no need for more office space in a residential road.  The rear of the building 
would infringe on properties in Smarts Lane.   
 
26 HIGH BEECH ROAD.  Objection.  My original objection still stands (More offices would worsen 
existing parking problems.  The top floor faces directly into my lounge.  The construction process 
will be noisy), how many times are they going to apply?   
 
LOUGHTON RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION (PLANS GROUP) – Object for the same reasons as the 
last application – because of its detrimental effect on the street scene, harmful effect on 
neighbouring properties because of over-dominance, lack of info on staff levels and travel plans 
and inadequate parking.  
 
 
 
 

Page 63



 
 
123 

 
 

 
 
  

 

 

34.7m

34.4m

C
R

1

15

17

11

197

Bank

30

177

179
181

183

191
189

13
8

12
6

195

187b

to

Lopping Hall

193

187a

14
 1

6 
18

Police Station

8

49

15
8

15
6

12
20

31

40

13
6

14
0

148

13

PH

13
2

12
8

20
a

18

24

39

18
a

24
a

20

30

11
9

14
a

15

14

19

12

4

65
69

61

Masonic Hall

18

20
a

5

20

14

18
a

7

28
26

26
a

9 11

32

38

29

34

15
19

39

48

42

50
a

50

9

15

11

187 185

PH

17 1

10
8

3

7

3

6

1

A - E 1

3 to

36

TCB

Park

Car

SM
AR

TS
 L

A
N

E

M
EW

S

TCBs

Car Park

H
IG

H
 R

O
AD

M
A

R
T

' S
 LA

N
E

C
O

N
N

A
U

G
H

T A

H
IG

H
 B

E
E

C
H

 R
O

A
D

L

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

8 

Application Number: EPF/1779/08 

Site Name: 9 - 11 High Beech Road, Loughton 
IG10 4BN 

Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 64



Report Item No: 9 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1615/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 160 Loughton Way  

Buckhurst Hill  
Essex  
IG9 6AR 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill East 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Syed Muhith 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use from an A1 shop to A5 takeaway.(revised 
application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The takeaway hereby permitted shall not be open to customers outside the hours of 
0900 to 2200 on Mondays to Thursdays and 0900 to 2300 on Fridays and 
Saturdays, and at no time on Sundays or Public/Bank Holidays. 
 

3 No development shall take place prior to submission and approval in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority of an appropriate mechanical extraction system to 
suppress and disperse cooking/food preparation fumes to a minimum. The system 
shall be installed strictly in accordance with the approved details, be in full working 
order, and be in use at all times that the premises are open for business, and shall 
be operated and maintained in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions. 
 

4 Detailed drawings that show adequate provision for foul drainage from the kitchen 
shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. Drains serving 
the kitchens in the development shall be fitted with a grease separator, as detailed in 
the building Regulations 2000, Approved Document H (Drainage and waste 
disposal), to comply with prEN 1825-1 and designed in accordance with prEN 1825-
2 (Installations for separation of grease) or other effective means of removal. The 
approved drainage shall be retained and maintained while the premises are in use. 
 

5 Prior to the premises being brought into use for the purpose hereby permitted, a 
scheme providing for the adequate storage of refuse from this use shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be 
carried out and thereafter retained at all times. 
 

 
 
 

Page 65



This application is before this Committee since it is an application for commercial development and 
the recommendation differs from more than one expression of objection (Pursuant to Section P4, 
Schedule A (f) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
Permission is sought to change the existing sui generis use as a tanning and beauty parlour for 
the vacant commercial premises into a takeaway – A5 Use. 
  
Description of Site:  
 
The subject site accommodates one of 12 ground floor commercial shop units located on the 
north-western side of Loughton Way. The shop is currently vacant with a two-storey level above 
used for residential purposes. The parade provides a lay-by that serves single lane traffic with 
vehicle parking and benefits from service access and parking to the rear. Within the vicinity of the 
site are residential dwellings and there is a public house to the north of the site.    
 
Relevant History: 
 
Approved CHI/0339/64 – Use of shop as launderette 
Approved EPF/0607/96 – New security shutters 
Approved EPF/0674/02 – Change of use of ground floor shop to a tanning studio and beauty 
parlour 
Withdrawn EPF/0856/08 – Change of use from an A1 shop to A5 takeaway 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
TC1 – Town centre hierarchy 
TC3 – Town centre  
TC6 – Local centre 
DBE9 – Neighbours’ amenity 
ST4 & ST6 – Parking and traffic congestion 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main considerations in assessing this proposal are established residents’ amenity, parking 
and the suitability of proposed use of the premises within a local shopping centre.  
 
Town Centre hierarchy 
 The subject site is identified as a local centre within Buckhurst Hill. The council’s policies seek 

to protect existing shopping facilities for the benefit of local residents. The last use of the site is 
a tanning and beauty parlour – a sui generis use - and the shop is currently vacant. Although 
no supporting statement has been submitted to show how long the premises has been vacant, 
this is not significant as the existing use is not retail.  

 The premises will be used from 09:00 until 22:00 Monday to Thursday and 09:00 until 23:00 
Friday and Saturday, which would not result in stretches of ‘dead’ daytime frontage or late 
night activities around the site at unsociable hours.  

 Therefore, it is assessed that the intended use as a takeaway could contribute towards day 
and evening activities that could positively reflect on the viability and vitality of this local centre 
and provide more choice of local facilities for the local population. The proposal is therefore 
appropriate to this parade of shops and will not result in loss of retail, therefore complying with 
the relevant town centre policies.  

 

Page 66



Vehicle parking 
 The site is located off Loughton Way, a relatively busy road that generates a certain amount of 

traffic and noise. It is considered that the proposed use will not result in higher levels of 
background noise to neighbouring dwellings’ amenity. 

 Parking is provided at the front and around the site and cars will not be parked for a lengthy 
period of time as such is sufficient for the intended use.  County Council Highway officers have 
raised no objections to the change of use of this site which complies with highway 
requirements.  

 
Neighbour Amenity  
 Details of the extract flue system have been submitted but the Director of Environmental 

Services is raising an objection to the low level extract point and information regarding odour 
abatement technology. Similar objections were raised to a similar change of use at no.148, a 
fish and chip take-away, but this was allowed on appeal in July 2001, with the Inspector 
concluding that the Environmental Health Officer’s requirement for a high level extraction 
system was not practical in this case and would appear visually intrusive, and that it would be 
technically possible to achieve an extraction system which would not give rise to an 
unreasonable level of odour or smell. Officers consider that should the application be refused, 
a Planning Inspector would be consistent and take the same view, so it is appropriate to 
control this by a planning condition. 

 
Other Matters 
 Neighbours’ concerns over the noise can be covered by a time restriction preventing the late 

use of the site. 
 Neighbours’ concerns relating to pollution can be covered by a suitable condition that requires 

odour abatement. 
 While other additional concerns relating to potential noise have been taken into account, 

however; it is considered that as there are existing evening uses around the site such as an 
off-licence at 64 Loughton Way and fish and chip takeaway shop at no. 148 Loughton Way, 
together with traffic generation from Loughton Way, the intended use as a takeaway will not 
worsen the current impact, hence this scheme meets with the relevant Local Plan policies. 

 
Conclusion 
 
Officers have in the past refused a similar planning application at no.148 in this parade, but it was 
not supported at an appeal hearing. As this would be only the second hot-food take-away use in 
this parade, it represents only a small percentage take up. Neighbours concerns are understood 
though, but Members need to weigh up whether this would cause demonstrable harm. Officers 
have been swayed by the appeal decision at no.148, but understand that this is a balanced 
decision that can be argued either way. For the reasons stated above, having regard to all matters 
raised by the petition from neighbours and Environmental Services, provided suitable odour 
abatement equipment is installed and maintained prior to commencement of use, the proposed 
change of use from existing sui generis as a tanning shop into an A5 hot food takeaway would not 
give rise to significant noise, disturbance, smells and odours to residents and dwellings in the 
surrounding area. As such the conclusion of officers is that it complies with the relevant Local Plan 
policies and is recommended for approval with conditions. 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:  
 
PARISH COUNCIL – NO OBJECTION 
 
PETITION SIGNED BY 25 INDIVIDUAL LOCAL RESIDENTS OBJECTING:  
Reasons: Potential increase in noise to residents especially on Friday and Saturday nights. 
Potential increase in parking  
Potential strong odour to residents living above

Page 67



 
 
123 

 
 

 
 
  

 

 
 

24.1m

23.8m

21.0m

23.8m

CR

CP

Ward Bdy

CP

1 
to

 1
2

R
ox

w
el

l H
ou

se 136 to 142

144 to 150

Court

Pa
rn

do
n 

Ho
us

e
1 

to
 1

2

1 
to

 3
6 The

25

45
 to

 5
5

33
 to

 4
3

29

31

27

15
2

16
6 

to
 1

96

14
2

45

PO

16
4

27

15

17

7
1

35

55

32

34

43

1324

107

1 to 6

103

105

Maldon
House

23

13
0

14
0

9

3
1

13

5

9

7

11

25

15

LB

Green Walk

Path

LO
U

G
H

TO
N

 W
AY

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

9 

Application Number: EPF/1615/08 

Site Name: 160 Loughton Way, Buckhurst Hill  
IG9 6AR 

Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 68



Report Item No: 10 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1753/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 102 - 104 Queen's Road 

Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 5BS 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Jason Cooper - Mount Charm Group 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing property and erection of new 
commercial offices and meeting hall. (Revised application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 
 

3 Prior to the commencement of development details of screen walls, fences or such 
similar structures shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and 
shall be erected before the occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved and 
maintained in the agreed positions. 
 

4 Prior to first occupation of the building hereby approved the proposed window 
openings in all flank walls shall be fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames, 
and shall be permanently retained in that condition. 
 

5 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting the Order) no windows other than any shown on 
the approved plan shall be formed at any time in the flank walls of the development 
hereby permitted without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

6 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order) no enclosure or balcony shall be 
formed at any time on any part of the roof of the development hereby approved 
without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

Page 69



7 Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during 
construction works shall be installed in accordance with details which shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these 
facilities installed prior to the commencement of any building works on site, and shall 
be used to clean vehicles leaving the site. 
 

8 Before the commencement of the development or any works on site, details of the 
landscaping of the site, including retention of trees and other natural features, shall 
be submitted in writing for the approval of the Local Planning Authority, and shall be 
carried out as approved. 
 

9 The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first 
occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the 
parking of staff and visitors vehicles. 
 

10 Prior to the commencement of the development details of the proposed surface 
materials for the driveway and parking area shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The agreed surface treatment shall be 
completed prior to the first occupation of the development. 
 

11 The meeting hall on the ground floor shall be retained for community uses as laid 
out in Class D1 of the Uses Classes Order 2005 and for no other use. 
 
 

12 The D1 use hereby permitted shall not be open to staff/customers/ members of the 
public outside the hours of 0800 to 2200 on Mondays to Sundays. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since it is an application for commercial development and 
the recommendation differs from more than one expression of objection (Pursuant to Section P4, 
Schedule A (f) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Demolition of existing meeting hall and erection of a three storey commercial offices and meeting 
hall (revised application) 
 
Description of Site: 
 
An existing single storey meeting hall, set back some 26m to the south of Queens Road with a car 
park to the front of the hall. There are residential properties to either side, the rear and across the 
road. The hall is currently being used for office accommodation and is subject to an enforcement 
investigation regarding this use. The site is not within the Town Centre Area. The site slopes 
gently down to the east. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
CHI/0751/73  Use of hall for Play Group   approved 
EPF/2337/07  Demolition of existing and new offices withdrawn 
 

Page 70



Policies Applied: 
 
East of England Plan 
E1 – Provision of employment 
 
Local Plan 
E4 – New business use 
CP3 – New development 
CP6 – Achieving sustainable urban development patterns 
CP9 – Sustainable transport 
DBE1 – Design of new buildings 
DBE2 – Effect of new buildings on surrounding area 
DBE9 – Amenity considerations 
ST4 – Highway safety 
ST6 – Vehicle parking 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues in this application are: 

1. Context 
2. Design 
3. Sustainability 
4. Neighbours Amenity 
5. Town Centre 
6. Parking  

 
It should be noted that the original scheme has been revised in its design and other details.  
 
Building in Context 
- The site is 14m wide and 47m deep, with the existing building set back some 19m from the 

main building line in this part of Queens Road. It is 8.5m high with a gable ended pitched roof.  
- The new scheme will see a three storey block, measuring a maximum of 22.5m deep, 11.7m 

wide and 10m high with a mansard roof. Parking will be at the rear, accessed via a tunnel on 
the east flank, with 7 parking spaces provided.  

- The plan of the building is ‘L’ shaped with a single storey rear projection adjacent to the west 
flank with 106 Queens Road.  

- A gap of 1m will remain to each flank.  
- The scheme will have a meeting hall for community uses on the ground floor and two floors of 

offices.  
- This is a fairly unusual case as the application is not to erect new flats on this previously 

developed site. The scheme will see the retention and improvement of the existing community 
facilities and the provision of new employment opportunities which is in line with the East of 
England Plan, in which the Council has to find a significant number of new jobs in concert with 
other local Councils.  

- The site is only just outside the Town Centre, the community use on the site is historically well 
established and its retention is welcomed, as is the provision of new employment.  

- As this is not a current residential site there is no loss of housing and the use of the site for 
employment with offices is considered one which will not cause any harm to the area in 
general terms.  

- The building itself has been redesigned several times and is in a street of considerable 
diversity, ranging from attractive Victorian and Edwardian detached houses to 1960 monolithic 
flat roofed flat developments. This scheme will sit between two detached properties at 100 and 
106.  

- The new scheme has been designed to have a residential appearance, especially from the 
street, and whilst it is higher than 106, which has a very slack roof pitch, it is only 1m higher 

Page 71



than No 100, and a similar height to 108/110 and the 1960s three storey block of flats at 112 to 
the west.  

- Whilst its depth is greater than either of the two neighbouring houses, this will not be obvious 
to users of the street due to the general built environment within the street, the fall of the 
ground to the east and the narrow frontages of several of the adjacent buildings.  

- It also has the advantage of removing a badly sited building with prominent parking area at its 
front, and bringing a welcome uniformity of building line to this portion of the street.  

- It is accepted that this is a balanced scheme in terms of its physical impact within the street 
scene, but taking into account the factors above it is considered that both the use and the 
building will not have an adverse impact on the character and appearance of the street scene, 
as it not out of keeping with the other properties within this diverse road and this is not a 
cramped or overly restricted site and can easily and comfortably accommodate a building of 
this size. 

 
Design 
- The scheme for the detached building is of an acceptable design, sitting comfortably on the 

plot, and is not out of place within this streetscape. 
- The scheme has been revised to improve the design of the roof, especially on the west flank.  
- The materials can be conditioned to be appropriate to the area. 
 
Sustainability & Urban Development 
- This is previously developed land. In both Policy CP6, 7 and PPG3 priority is given to the 

reuse of previously developed land in urban areas, but this should not be at the expense of the 
quality of the local environment and unsympathetic change.  

- It is considered that this is a good quality and sympathetic scheme.  
 

Amenity & Impact on Neighbours 
- The scheme will potentially impact on the adjacent neighbours (100 and 106), and neighbours 

to the rear (83 – 91 Princes Road). 
- No 100 is to the east and is slightly lower due to the change in levels, and is a three storey 

house, with a 2m close boarded wooden fence on the boundary. 
- The new building’s rear elevation has been stepped back to reduce the impact on No 100 and 

the two rear projections on the new structure are away from this flank.  
- There will be no adverse impact on daylight, and although some loss of sunlight to the rear 

garden will occur in the late afternoon at some times of year this would not justify a refusal on 
these grounds.  

- There would be no adverse overlooking of the site.  
- No 106 Queens Road has a large two storey flat roof rear extension and a 2m brick boundary 

wall, and has a greater potential for loss of light as a result of this scheme than No 100.  
- The extension’s main ground floor windows will not be significantly affected by the single 

storey rear extension due to the existence of the boundary brick wall and the fall of the ground 
and the 1st floor rear windows will not be adversely affected by this scheme, although the 
secondary windows at both levels will suffer some loss of light. It is considered that this would 
not, however, justify a refusal. It is the case that the owners of No 106 have not objected to the 
physical aspects of this scheme.  

-  There would be no adverse overlooking of No 106.  
- With regard to overlooking both properties would have an improvement in the current situation 

where their rear elevations are overlooked from the car park area. 
- The visual impact of the new scheme is also a factor to be assessed. It is considered that it will 

not have an adverse impact on the outlook of No 100, due to the step back of the design, and 
in the case of No 106, and due to changes of the fenestration and roof design it would be 
acceptable in its impact on this property.  

- The premises in Princes Road to the rear of the site will not have any adverse impact in terms 
of outlook as the new building will be further away than the existing meeting hall, and in terms 
of overlooking the distance to their rear elevations is a minimum of 50m, well within acceptable 

Page 72



limits. It is also the case that planting is proposed on the site boundaries which will provide a 
further screening effect.  

- The use of the site may also have an impact on the amenities of the neighbours.  
- The meeting hall is designed for local groups and is unsuitable for wedding receptions and 

parties by its size and design. It is also the case that there is limited parking on the site, 
however, it is easily accessible by public transport which would remove the potential for 
disturbance to local residents by the arrival and departure of users by car.  

- It is considered that a condition restricting the use to 10pm is reasonable in this busy 
thoroughfare, and it should be noted that the current use has unrestricted hours. 

- The use of the top two floors as offices will not cause any adverse harm to the amenities of 
neighbouring residential properties.  

 
Parking 
- The scheme provides off street parking in line with current parking standards.  
- It is accepted that this is the minimum that would be accepted on this site, but it is also the 

case that the site is very close to excellent public transport links from local buses and trains.  
- In addition it is reasonable to expect that the community use would be for local people who 

would be within easy walking distance of the site. 
- Queens Road is a controlled area for parking and it is considered that these controls would 

prevent any further on-street parking from becoming a problem. It is also the case that due to 
its public transport links that most employees in the offices would use public transport. 

 
Conclusion 
 
This is a scheme for a redevelopment of a good sized site and maintains an existing facility for the 
local community use as well as providing new employment opportunities. The scheme can be 
accommodated within the site without it being cramped and the design fits in well with the street 
scene. It does not have an adverse impact on the amenity of the neighbouring properties by 
design or its use. Officers recommend approval for the reasons laid out above. 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS  
 
PARISH COUNCIL – No objection in principle but would query whether there is adequate car 
parking facilities and feel conditions should be imposed to restrict evening use.  
 
91 QUEENS ROAD – Object, commercial premises will be out of keeping, insufficient parking 
space. 
 
100 QUEENS ROAD – Object, structure is bulky, excessive in height and overshadows its 
neighbours; I will lose signifigant light to the rear of my house. 
 
83 PRINCES ROAD – Object, structure is unsuitable for a quiet residential area; there will be 
noise and commotion late at night.  
 
85 PRINCES ROAD – Object, meeting hall will affect the quiet of the area, this section of Queens 
Road is residential, I will be overlooked, noise will be excessive, worried about construction traffic. 
 
87 PRINCES ROAD – Object, I will be overlooked; use of meeting hall will affect my amenity.  
 
GREEN ACRES, EPPING – No objection provided use of meeting hall does not extend beyond 
normal business hours and no license of alcohol will be granted, we are the owners of 106 Queens 
Road. 
 
 

Page 73



 
 
123 

 
 

 
 
  

 

 
 

 

55.8m

60.7m

65.5m

5
8

12

95

9

75a

77a
75

75b

86

79
77

82

68

69

67
65

57

65a
63

67a83

98

97

5

1

1
3 Hall

6

El
Sub Sta

5

110
106

1 to 15

Court 100

Marlborough

122

102
104

99

8

107

12

16

105
107

109 Sub
Sta

1

El

23

119

13
2

El
Sub Sta

ANDREWS CLOSE

T
H

E
 A

V
E

N
U

E

M
O

N
A

R
C

H
 P

LA
C

E

BUCKHURST
HILL

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

10 

Application Number: EPF/1753/08 

Site Name: 102 - 104 Queen's Road, Buckhurst 
Hill, IG9 5BS 

Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 74


	Agenda
	2 Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees
	Plans South Map

	3 Minutes
	7 Development Control
	Plans South Schedule 15-Oct-08


